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California Personal Responsibility Education Program (CA PREP) 
Request for Application (RFA) Questions & Answers 

 
1. Are organizations allowed to apply to serve two counties (from the same or different tiers)?  If so, 

do applicants need to submit two different applications?  Would the applicant be able to apply for 
the funding range amount that corresponds to each county?  

 
Organizations may apply to serve as many eligible counties as they choose, regardless of tier.  One 
application must be submitted for each county in which services are proposed.  Applications will be 
considered independently regardless of the applying organization and each application is eligible for the 
funding range that corresponds to the proposed county’s tier (see Page 20 in the RFA).  

 
2. Is it possible for more than one grant to be awarded per county or area?  
 
Yes.  Per Page 20 in the RFA, up to three awards may be made per county. 
 
3. What are the designated amounts of funding per county? 
 
Per Page 20 in the RFA, funding levels will be within the funding ranges by tier described in Table 3.  The 
amount awarded within the funding range will be determined by CDPH/MCAH based upon availability of 
funding, the applicant’s proposed budget, and CA PREP funding priorities.   
 
4. May we provide PREP services outside the MSSA area if the target population lives in the MSSA 

area?  For example, if the site is a continuation school outside of the identified MSSA, where the 
students that attend the school live within the MSSA.  

 
Yes.  Per Page 9 in the RFA, youth are considered high-risk by CA PREP if they reside or attend school in a 
high-needs MSSA.  In the example proposed the site would also qualify under criteria d. on Page 9, 
“Attend an alternative or continuation school.” 

 
5. Can funding that is directed to one county be used to implement activities in another county as 

long as the youth being served are residents of the county where funding was appropriated?   
 
Yes; this is acceptable if both counties are eligible and the youth meet at least one of the criteria on Page 
9 of the RFA.   
 
6. Are the funding amounts per tier listed on page 20 available for each of the three project years or 

do they represent the total amount available over the three project years?  
 

The funding amounts per tier listed on page 20 of the RFA are the amount available annually for each of 
the three project years. 
 
7. Regarding the discussion of staffing requirements on Pages 15-16, are the facilitator and the 

health educator one in the same?  
 
Yes.  On Page 15-16 of the RFA, “health educator” and “facilitator” refer to the same position. 
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8. Can you please clarify the instructions for pagination? Should each section be numbered 
individually, or should they be paginated consecutively throughout the document?  

 
Each section in the application should be numbered individually. 
 
9. In Attachment 7, both letters of support and a letter of commitment are mentioned.  Are those 2 

phrases used interchangeably?  
 
Yes.  The Letter of Support and the Letter of Commitment that are mentioned in Attachment 7 refer to 
the same document.    
 
10. In Attachment 8, how can we create an additional entry to add another staff name to the ASF 

(additional staff form)?  
 

For RFA response purposes, applicants are only required to complete the first page of the ASF.  Should 
applicants be awarded, completion of the second page of information will be required upon award. 
 
11. Will we receive confirmation that our application was received if submitted before the deadline?  
 
Yes.  Applicants will receive an email confirmation within two business days after their application is 
received if submitted via mail, or a paper receipt if submitted in person. 
 
12. If we have I&E funding are we eligible to apply for the CA PREP program as long as we don’t 

duplicate service locations?  
 
Yes.  Applicants that receive other sources of sexual health education funding are eligible to apply.  Plans 
to provide CA PREP services without duplicating other related activities (and how such activities could 
potentially complement each other) should be addressed in the Background, Agency Experience, and 
Organizational Capacity section of the Program Narrative described on Page 22 of the RFA.  
 
13. It would be interesting to talk with other organizations who have successfully adapted their EBPM 

to better serve communities like ours. Is there a directory or another way to get in touch with 
other CA PREP agencies?  

 
If awarded, applicants will work with their Program Consultant and technical assistance team to adapt 
their EBPM(s) as needed to their target population(s) and community.  At that time, there will be 
opportunities to collaborate and share information with current CA PREP agencies.  The resources in 
Appendix 2 should help with examples of adaptation strategies, particularly the ReCAPP page on making 
adaptations to evidence-based programs: 
http://recapp.etr.org/recapp/index.cfm?fuseaction=pages.AdaptationsHome. 
 
14. Making Proud Choices! (MPC!) is one of the EBPMs. Are the MPC! School Edition and MPC! An 

Adaptation for Youth in Out-Of-Home Care included?  
 

The MPC! School Edition and MPC! An Adaptation for Youth in Out-Of-Home Care are not included 
among the five CA PREP approved program models.  However, applicants are welcome to propose using 
one or both of these models using the guidance on Page 10 of the RFA.  If awarded, applicants will work 
with their CDPH/MCAH Program Consultant to determine the best program model for their target 

http://recapp.etr.org/recapp/index.cfm?fuseaction=pages.AdaptationsHome
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population(s) and setting(s).  Any program models outside of the five approved CA PREP models must be 
reviewed and approved by CDPH/MCAH prior to implementation.   
 
15. SHARP was originally implemented by Master’s-level facilitators. Are applicants allowed to 

implement this EBPM with facilitators of lower educational attainment?  
 
It is not required that facilitators have a Master’s degree to implement any of the CA PREP evidence-
based program models, including SHARP. Please refer to Pages 15-16 in the RFA for descriptions of 
required facilitator competencies. 
 
16. Page 41 of the RFA instructs applicants to assume that trainings and meetings will be held in 

Sacramento or the Bay Area and will cost approximately $150.00 per training. Does this include 
trainings on all 5 EBPMs listed in Appendix 2?  

 
Applicants need only budget for trainings on EBPMs they plan to implement.  The registration cost of 
each EBPM facilitator training will be $150.00 per training per facilitator. 
 
17. Page 40 of the RFA asks applicants to include various justifications (e.g., fringe benefits 

breakdown, how salaries were determined). Is there a sample budget justification we can refer 
to? If not, can you be more explicit as to the worksheet and column in which these details should 
be entered?  

 
Due to updates in the budget template, it is not necessary to include the personnel details described on 
Page 40 of the RFA in the applicant’s initial proposal.  The personnel budget justification will be 
requested upon award. 
 
18. Can applicants choose to budget less than 15% for indirect costs?  

 
Yes.  Applicants may choose to budget up to 15% for indirect costs. 
 
19. Page 16 of the RFA instructs applicants to budget for “one health educator (100% FTE).” Can this 

1.00 FTE be divided between two facilitators that each work on the program 50% FTE?  
 
Per Page 24 of the RFA, CDPH/MCAH highly recommends planning for PREP facilitators to have all or 
most of their FTE percentage devoted to PREP (i.e., not split across multiple projects), so they can 
implement regularly and build skill and comfort with delivering the curricula.  The expectation at the 
minimum funding level ($125,000) is at least one full-time facilitator.  If proposing a different staffing 
structure, please include an explanation and rationale in the Implementation Plan, Proposed Staffing 
Structure section of the Program Narrative on Pages 23-24 of the RFA.      
 
20. Regarding audit costs, discussed on Page 42: Must the budget include a $3,000 line item for 

auditing expenses, or can this be billed to the indirect line item?  
 

The applicant may identify audit costs as a direct or absorb this cost within the indirect cost rate.  
However, it should be noted that under the performance of an audit they should be able to provide 
justification that the audit expense was not higher than $3,000. 
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21. Regarding Adulthood Preparation Subjects, discussed on Pages 12 & 13: The instructions state 
that “Following training, CA PREP facilitators will incorporate APS content and themes into EBPMs 
throughout implementation using strategies and adaptations provided by CDPH/MCAH.” Are 
these recommendations or guidelines available now in order to fully describe the proposed 
implementation plan?  

 
Adulthood Preparation Subject (APS) guidance is being finalized and is not available to applicants at this 
time; this guidance will be available to awardees prior to implementation.  For the purposes of writing 
the implementation plan, it is not necessary to address required additions.  The implementation plan 
proposal should highlight any plans for optional APS activities. 
 
22. Regarding Submission Content, discussed on Page 29: Please confirm that no photocopies of the 

application are required. The instructions ask for 1 original and 1 CD, but there are references to 
“extra application sets” and “photocopies” on pg. 30.  

 
Applicants must submit one original hard copy of the application including original signatures, and one 
compact disc (CD) containing all application documents in electronic form. 
 
23. Regarding Letters of Support, discussed on Page 25: Please confirm that the maximum number of 

LOS requested is 5.  
 
Yes, the maximum number of Letters of Support requested is five.  Letters of support from the following 
entities are required: 1) one or more local Family PACT providers); 2) the local Maternal, Child and 
Adolescent Health Director or his/her public health designee; and 3) a representative from a current or 
potential CA PREP service delivery site that serves the applicant’s target population(s), addressing 
willingness to support CA PREP implementation, including evaluation requirements. 
 
24. Will the ratio for facilitators to students remain at 1:12?   

 
Please refer to Appendix 2, Page 2, Table 1 for all Facilitator to Student Ratios. In addition, please note 
that in the upcoming CA PREP funding cycle, a cohort cap of 24 will be in place for all Be Proud! Be 
Responsible!, Cuídate! and Making Proud Choices! cohorts (Appendix 2, Page 3).   
 
25. Must the condom demo be on an anatomical model, or can we use our fingers?  This issue can be 

a big barrier for school boards and parents (even with the allowed individual student opt-out).  
 
Using fingers or other substitutions for anatomical models (such as bananas) is an acceptable adaptation 
in condom demonstrations.  
 
26. What % of the funding must be spent on delivering one of the 5 prescribed EBPMs as opposed to 

the other activities in the work plan and/or other proposed programming? 
 
Applicants are encouraged to propose new strategies and activities around the adulthood preparation 
subjects, community outreach, and clinical linkages.  While delivery of EBPM content should be the 
primary activity supported by CA PREP funds, there is no set ratio of funding spent on EBPM delivery 
compared with other activities.  This will vary by agency and implementation plan.  Please refer to pages 
24-25 in the RFA for a description of how to calculate the annual reach number.  Any funds that are 
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available after ensuring the annual reach number is met may be allocated to support other CA PREP 
activities.   

 
27. What flexibility is there with adapting EBPMs for populations/settings other than those the 

programs were evaluated on? For example, if an EBPM is prescribed for consecutive delivery days, 
but it works better for a site to have the program 1 x week for 6 weeks rather than for 6 
consecutive days, is that OK?  Or, if a curriculum is prescribed for incarcerated youth but an 
agency deems it appropriate for their pregnant and parenting teens who are not incarcerated, is 
that allowable? 

 
Applicants should propose Implementation Plans that best fit their target populations.  While substantial 
variations from the intended schedule and/or target population recommended for a program model will 
be evaluated on a case-by-case basis, applicants are encouraged to tailor program models to meet the 
needs of their participants and communities.  Recommendations for delivery schedule and intended 
audience are outlined in Appendix 2.  

 
28. Can you please explain the CASHNI scores further?  We know that different indicators are used to 

calculate them but do not understand how they were calculated.  Please explain why counties 
with some indicators of high need are excluded from funding - is it because they are too small in 
population? 

 
The CASHNI is a weighted index based on MSSA-level community need.  To meet the stated goal of PREP 
to reduce the adolescent birth rate in California, the largest weight is given to the number of adolescent 
births in a given year.  This number is multiplied by a value of 1 to 5, depending on the level of 
community need (taking into account a standard set of indicators including adolescent birth rate, 
gonorrhea rate, concentration of poverty, and the other indicators listed in Appendix 1).  The total is then 
multiplied by 2 if the community is located in a rural area.  The county CASHNI score is the sum of 
CASHNI scores across MSSAs in a county.  Counties are eligible for the 2015-2018 PREP RFA if they have a 
minimum county score of 400.   Thus, it is possible for a county with as few as 40 adolescent births per 
year to be eligible for PREP funding, depending on their level of need. 
 
29. In review of the CA PREP RFA it is clear that community-based entities are best positioned to 

conduct PREP work in each eligible county. Would a proposal targeting high-risk transitional youth 
in multiple eligible CA counties using the most relevant EPBM and building a coordinated 
statewide effort with geographically diverse stakeholders be considered for funding?  

 
Organizations may apply to serve as many eligible counties as they choose, regardless of tier.  One 
application must be submitted for each county in which services are proposed.  Applications will be 
considered independently regardless of the applying organization and each application is eligible for the 
funding range that corresponds to the proposed county’s tier (see Page 20 in the RFA).  
 
30. One of our small cities does not qualify for the PREP grant according to the MSSA system.  

However, 60% of the high school students are Hispanic in that city and 75% of high school 
students in that city receive Free or Reduced lunches.  SNAP-Ed found that although the same city 
did not qualify for that program as an entire Census Tract, when we look at specific groups, like 
Hispanic students, migrant farm-workers, or non-English speaking families, or when you use the 
smaller Census Blocks, most families do indeed qualify as low-income and eligible for SNAP 
services.   Could we include the high school in the project? 
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Please refer to the Program Requirements section on Page 9 of the RFA.  The difference between CA 
PREP funding criteria and SNAP eligibility is that the CASHNI takes into account more than poverty 
(complete description in Appendix 1).  The CASHNI is also based on comparative need across California.       
 
31. We have questions as to the “parent child communication” adulthood preparation subject.  If we 

were to include activities related to parent-child communication in our project: What curriculum 
can or must be used?  

 
Applicants are encouraged to propose activities related to covering any adulthood preparation subjects.  
Applicants are welcome to propose their own curricula and activities; if awarded, all materials must be 
reviewed and approved by CDPH/MCAH prior to implementation.  Awardees will also receive support and 
technical assistance to choose and implement additional APS activities as needed. 

 
32. If we offer workshops to parents, how do we count the numbers seen?   
 
CDPH/MCAH will provide awardees guidance in tracking attendance for community presentations or 
workshops.  Parents will not be included in the annual reach number (this number only includes youth 
participants).   
 
33. Would the University of California Cooperative Extension program’s financial literacy program, 

“Making Every Dollar Count:  A financial literacy education curriculum for limited-resource 
families” qualify for the adulthood preparation subject of “Financial Literacy”?  

 
Applicants are encouraged to propose activities related to covering any adulthood preparation subjects.  
Applicants are welcome to propose their own curricula and activities; if awarded, all materials must be 
reviewed and approved by MCAH prior to implementation.  Awardees will also receive support and 
technical assistance to choose and implement additional APS activities as needed. 
 
34. On page 13 of the RFA you state:  “not all models adequately cover each topic” and later in letter 

b.: “Encouraged:  Awardees may add relevant activities (such as an activity on puberty or physical 
development…)”.  Our county’s health educators feel the program would be most successful if 
reproductive anatomy were covered prior to the program.  If this topic were covered in 
compliance with State of California Ed Code, would this be acceptable?  What is the approval 
process?  Does this need to be included in the Narrative of the grant application?  

 
Yes, it is acceptable and encouraged to add activities covering reproductive anatomy and other topics as 
applicable to meet the needs of the target population(s).  Any activities added must be reviewed and 
approved by MCAH prior to implementation.  This review will include ensuring compliance with the 
California Health & Safety and Education Codes.  Any additional activities proposed should be included in 
the program narrative.   
 
35. Due to the January deadline, it will not be possible to receive approval from the local School 

Boards to conduct these programs during school hours.   Therefore, we might have to conduct the 
classes after school or on weekends, not during school hours.   It may be difficult to ensure 
consistent attendance of youth participants outside normal school hours.  In order to fulfill the 
grant, what type of attendance is acceptable?  How many of the program dates must students 
attend in order to qualify as “completing” the course?  
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Please note that the program narrative instructions on Page 25 of the RFA ask for letters of support, but 
do not require a Memorandum of Understanding or School Board approval to be included with the 
application.   
 
If an applicant would like to serve a school-based population and is unable to provide services during 
school hours, the applicant should address in the implementation plan how they plan to overcome 
barriers to retention if they are providing services after school or on weekends.  Retention varies by site 
and setting; average attrition rates are provided in Appendix 2, Table 2.  Participants must complete 75% 
of the Intended Curriculum Length to be counted as completing the course.     
 
36. Do youth participants need to have signed parent permission slips if the program is not conducted 

at school?  Does California’s MCAH program provide a permission slip?  
 
Active consent is not required for participation in CA PREP programming at any site. Under California law 
(California Education Code Section 51930-51939), a parent or guardian can choose to withdraw their 
child from all or part of comprehensive sexual health education. If a site requires active consent for CA 
PREP services, the awardee can use their own consent form or CDPH/MCAH can provide a template. 
 
Consent is required for all federally-mandated entry and exit surveys. MCAH provides permission slips 
and guidance for these consent procedures. 
 


